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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
' Miami Division

CASENO.: 06:21748-CIV-MARTINEZ-BANDSTRA
MARK J. GAINOR and ELYSE GAINOR, |
'Plgintiffs, |
- V.

SIDLEY AUSTIN LLP, a Delaware limited liability
Partnership, f’k/a SIDLEY AUSTIN
BROWN & WOOD, f/k/a BROWN & WOOD,
R. J. RUBLE, an individual, ARTHUR _
ANDERSEN, LLP, an Illinois limited liability

" partnership, MICHAEL S. MARX, an individual,
P. ANTHONY NISSLEY, an individual,
MERRILL LYNCH & CO., INC., a Delaware
corporation, and MARK C. KLOPFENSTEIN,
an individual,

Defendants.
/

AMENDED COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiffs,. Mark J. Gainor (*“Gainor”} and Elyse Gainor, two iqdividuals, sue

- Defendants, Sidley, Austin, Erown & .Wood, LLE (“Sidleyf’), R. J. Rubie, {“Ruble”),

Arthur Andersen (“Andersen”), Michael S. Marx (“Marx™), P. Anthériy ' Nissley
(“Nissley™), Merriﬂ Lynch & Co., Inc. (“Memill Lynéh”); and Maﬂc C Klopfenstein | '

(“Klopfenstein’;), and éllege: | | |

THE PARTIES

1. Plaintiff Mark Gainor was, at all times material, an individual residing in
_the State of Georgia and then later in Dade County, Florida. Plaintiff Elyse Gainor was

at all times material, an individual residing in the State of Georgia and then later in Dade

:
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County, Flbrida and is, and at ail_ material times was, the wife of Plaintiff Mark Gainor.
Plaintiff Elyse Gainor also suffered the adverse tax consequences set forth below, as she
- filed _] oint tax returns with her husband Plaintiff Mark Gainor.

2. Defendant Sidley is a limited liability partnership organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Delawrare with its im'ncipal place of business in Chicago,
Ilinois. . |

. 3. Sidley is one of the nation’s largest and most prominent law firms, with
over 1,400 lawyers, multiple offices in the United States a:nd abroad, and a practice that is
both nationwide and international in scope.

- 4. At all times material, Sidley held itself out to the public as possessing
special knowledge, skill and expertise .in the ﬁeld of tax planning. |

5. Defendant R. J. Ruble is an individual who is z.a, citizen and resident of the
state of New York.

6. At all times material, Ruble was a partner in Defendant Sidley in the tax
planning department. Ruble also held himself out to thé pﬁblic as possessing special
knowledge, skill aﬁd expertise in the field of tax planniﬁg. |

7. Atall times material hereto, Defendant Aﬁdersen was a worldwide firm of
certified public. accountants, audi.tors and consultants, précticing as a limited Iiéf)ﬂity
partnership organized and existing under the laws of the State of Illinois with its principal
place of business in Chicago,. Tliinois. |

8.  Defendant Andersen was one of the original “Big Eight” accounting firms.

It had tens of thousands of employees, multiple offices in the United States and abroad,
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and a practice both national and international in scope. In 1999, it was truly 6ne of the
most respected and trusted accounting firms in the world.

0, At all times material, Andersen held itself out tb the public as possessing
special knowledge, skill and expertise in fhe fields of tax planning and transagtion

- structuring. - | |

10. Defendant Marx is an individual who is a citizen and resident of the state of
Georgia.

11. Af all times material, Marx, who is a Certified Public Accountant, was a
partner or employee of Defendant Andersen. Marx _é.lso ﬁeld himself out to the public as |
possessing special knbwledge, skill and exﬁerfise in the fields of tax planning and
transaction structuring. o |

12. Defendant Nissleyris an individual who is a citizen and resident of the state
of Illinois.

13. At all tirh_es material, Nissley waé a partner or employee of -Defendant
Aﬁdersen; Nissley also held himself out to the public as i)oésessing special knowledge,

~skill and expertiseé in the ﬁélds of tax planning and transaction structuring,

14.  Defendant Merrill Lynch is a corporation-organized and existing under the
laws of the State of Délaware. | : |

15. Merrill Lynch is one of the largest ﬁnancia1 services firms in the world. It
has tens of thousands of empioyees, multiple offices in the United States aﬁd abrdad, and
a practice both national and international in scope. |

16. At all tifncs ﬁlaterial; Merrill Lynch held itself | out to the public as

possessing special knowledge, skill and expertise in the field of transaction structuring.
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17. Defendant Klopfenstein is an individual who is a citizen and resident of the-

State of Georgia. Klopfenstein is a former eniployee of Defendant Andersen.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
18. This is an action for damagés in excess of two miIIion dollars
($2,000,0Q0.00) exclusive of interest, attorneys’ fees and costs. |
| 19.  This action accrued in Miami-Dade County, Florida.
20. Jurisdictiqn over Defendants Sidley, Ruble, Andersen, Marx, Nisslrey and
.Klopfenstein,-is proper under § 48.193, Fla. Stat., because this actioﬁ a:risés from one or
more of the following acts by each, acting individually, collectively ﬁrith.the other

Defendants, and/or through agent(s): : ' . _ !

a. engaging in business in the State of Florida,;
b. committing a tortious act or acts within the State of Florida;
c. causing- injury to persons or property within the State of Florida

arising out of an act or omission outside of Florida;
d. breaching a contract in -the State of Florida;
e. actively engaging in the solicitation of Florida residents for the
provision of professional services;
f. Andersen, through Marx, and Sidley, | through Ruble,
| | communicated with Gainor while Gainor was in Florida.j
21. Defendant Merrill Lynch has offices in the State of Flon'da,. does business |

in the State of Florida, and has qualified to do business in the State of Florida.
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NATURE OF THE ACTION
22.  This case arises from a well-planned coﬁspiracy by Defendants Andersen,
‘ Mar:{, Nissley, Sidley, Ruble, Merrill Lynch and Klopfenstein, in which they misused :
their substantial reputations and-positi'ons of trust to bilk Plaintiff Gainor out of milljons .I |
- of dollars. . B
23. The scheme. entalled Defendants. mducmg Plaintiff Gainor to. bellevc that
Defendants had a legal “tax strategy” (hereinafter “the S1dlcy Plan”) which would yield
Gamor over seventeen million dollars ($17,000,000) in tax savings, and persuading
Gainor to pay them over two million one hundred thousand doltars ($2,I_00,000) in fees |
to implement the Sidl'ey Plan. o
24, In .actuality, as Defendaﬁts well kﬁew, the _Sidléy PIah was a fraudqlent tax
scheme certain to be condemned by the Internal Revenue Service. The result was that
Gainor had tor_ pay an additional seventeen million doliars ($17,000,000) in taxes and
interest, and substantial additional amounts in professional fees and costs incﬁrred in
négotiationé with the Internal Revenue Service. _
| 25 As more fully set forth below, the Defendants acted ina highly—opgmlized
| fashion, with eachpbnspirator fulfilling a.critjcal, pre-planned role. Upon information

and belief, Plaintiff Gainor is merely one of hundreds of victims of such conspiraciés.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS APPLICABLE TO ALL COUNTS
26. In 1998, Gainor maintained an 81.2% interest in Gainor Medical :

Management, LLC (“GMM”) through direct ownership as well as through in_terésts- in

two wholly-owned subchapter S cdrporations, Bryan Medical, Inc. (;‘Bryan Medical™)

and Gainor Medical U.S.A., Inc. (“GMUSA”™).
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27. Andersen had an established relationship of trust and confidence with 7.
PIéintiff Gainor as his accountant, bonsultént, and financial advisor. Due to this
relationship, Andersen became aware of Gainor’s plans to sell the GMM businéss.

28.  Before the closing on the séle of the business, Andersen informed Gainor
that it might be able to recommend a course of action that wduld reduce Gainor’s total tax
liability on the planned sale. _ |

29.  In or about Decerﬂber of 1998, GMM agreed to sell substantially all of its

assets and subsidiaries; the liquidation generated a total gain in excesé of one hundred
_‘ thirty million dollars ($130, 000 ,000); the sale closed in about January of 1999
_ 30. Unbeknownst to Gainor, Andersen was an established cllent of Sidley’s,
and in July of 1999, Sidley opened a new file for Andersen, with Ruble as the paﬂner in
chargé, for “structuring tax advantage transactions.” |

31. On .August 5, 1999, Ruble, then a partner in Defendant Sidley, provided

Marx and Nissley with a redacted .sampie opinion letter that he had prepared for another
- transaction, knowing and intending rthat Andersen would reljr on it and use it to sell a tax
shelter proposal to Gainor. |

32. Later in August of 1999, Andersen, with Sldley S express or 1mp11c:1t
authority, offered to Gainor a “strategy” des1gned by Sidley (heremaﬁer “the Sidley
Plan”) to effectuate a tax savings of approximately seventeen million dollars |
(817,000,000) related to the asset sale. Andersen, through Marx, explaineci to Gainor that
this tax she]t& would be supported by an opinion letter from Sid]ey; on which Gainor

could rely, and that the losses and deductions to be claimed from implementation of the

strategy (which would create the tax savings) would likely be upheld if challenged by the
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Tnternal Revenue Service (the “IRS”). Andersen also advised Gainor that it had also met

with Merrill Lynch personnel at a recent conference in Phoenix and that Merrill Lynch

would assist in effectuating the program.

"~ 33, On or about August 20, 1999, Andersen sent to. Gainor, via facsimile, a

~ schedule confirming the anticipated professional fees and transaction costs that would be

incurred and the tax savings to be realized from implementing the Sidley Plan. -

| 34, The total projected cost of the Sidley flan, as reflected in an updated

transaction summary from October of 1999, included approximately two million, one

hundred thousand dollars ($2,100,000) in fees and transaction_ costs payable to

Defendants Andersen, Sidley and Merrill Lynéh, and to an entity controlled by Defendant

Klopfenstein. o | |

35.  On or about September 1, 1999, Gainor authé_rized Andersen to proceéd
with Defenda:nfs’ implementatién of the Sidley Plan.

36.  After Gainor authorized implementation of _th'e Sidley Plan, a series of
complex and costly financial transactions were conducted that were designed By Sidley to
generate @)ver seventy million dollars ($70,00_0,000). in épparﬁnt capital losses_. All of
Gainor’s ownersh_ip interests in GMUSA (By that time. having been merged into Lucor
Special Investments, Inc. (“LSI’;)) and Bryén Medical were transferred to MJG, a
Georgia limited partnership in which Gainor held an 86.17 percent inte;est as a limited
partner. |

37.  On December 10, 1999, the IRS released Notice 99-59, “’fax Avoidance
Using Distributions of Encumbered Property.” Noticer99~5.9 described certain abusive

arrangements factually similar to the Sidley Plan and warned that such transactions




Case 1:06-cv-21748-JEM  Document 114-2  Entered on FLSD Docket 07/26/2007  Page 9 of 43
Case 1:06-cv-21748-JEM  Document 37-2  Entered on FLSD Docket 03/02/2007 Page 8 of 42

generate axﬁﬁcial losses lacking economic substaﬁce and do not constitute the type of
bona fide losses that are deductiblc under the Internal R‘evenﬁe Code. | |
38.  That same day, S'idley' and Andersen discussed the -impact of Notice 99-59
on the Sidley Plan. Sidley advised Andersen that Sidley would still iésue the fa;roraBle
“more likely than not” 6pinj0n letters, but that the opinions Wouid have to addrésé Notice
99.59. Sidley admittéd to Andersen that Notice 99-39 could impair Gainor’s ability to
say that he relied in good faith on the. advice of a tax professional, but Sidley never
communicated this to Gainor. |
_ 39, Thereaﬁer, in ;c_icoordance with the Sidley Plan, on Decembe‘r 14, 1999,
MIG sold its stock in BryanrMedical to one of the Klopfenstein eﬁtitics for two hundred
ninety-seven thousand, one hundred fifieen dollars ($297,115) a forty million dollar
{$40,000,000) capital léss on paper. Likewise, on Decemi)er 23, 1999, MIG sold all. of
its stock in LSI to the other Klopfenstein entity for one hundred twenty-five thousa:qd,
seven hundred seventy-five dollars ($125,775), an additional thirty million, six hundred
thousand dollars ($30,600,000) capital loss on paper.
40. Sometime after the trahSéctions were finalized, on or after December"Sl,.
1999, Sidley deiivefed to Gainor two qualified tax opinion letters. These letters (each
ovef 50 pages in length) confirmed that the deductions claimed for tﬁe capital losses
generated in connectioh with the subject transactions would “ﬁlore likely than not™ be |
upheld if challenged by the IRS. |
41. Subsequently, Andersen prepared the federal income fax returns for the
Plaintiffs that reported these transactions. On these retﬁrns, Andérse’n reported a forty

million dollar ($40,000,000) capital loss from the Bryan Medical salé? and claimed a
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~ deduction in that amount. Andersen reported an additional thirty million, six hundred
t,housand. dollar ($30,600,000) capital loss from the MJG sale, and claimed a further
~ deduction in that amount. Thus, the total capital losses and deductions claimed from the
two transactions exceeded seventy million dollars ($70,000,000). No offsetting gains
" were reported. |
42.  On December 22, ZQOI, the IRS published Announcement 2002-2, 2002-1
C.B. 304 (Diéclosure Initiative), in which it encouraged taxpayers to disclose their
participation in .and tax treatment of tax shelters in exchange for the IRS’s waiver of
| certain penalties under 26 U.S.C. § 6662. | |
43. On March 14, 2002, Sidley sent thfee letters to Gainor and related entities
advising them of the IRS voluntary disclosure ﬁrogram and “sh‘ongly recommending”
Gainor c.onsult with his ;‘regular tax advisor” fega:rding the terms and impliéations of the
voluntary disclosure program and the advisability of paﬁiﬁipating-in same with respéct to
the transactions conducted in accordance with the Sidley Plan.
44,  Prior to Sidley’s correspondence to him of March 14, 2002, Gainor
voluntarily disclosed to the IRS his involvement with the subject transactions.
45. Gain'qr engaged tax counsel and other pr(:;fessionals to handle the dealings
with the IRS. Gainor’s representétive contacted Sidley to inquire if 'Sidleyl continﬁéd o
~ stand behind its opinion letters and Andersen to see if it would provide assistance. On
January 23, 2004, Sidley advised that it continued to maintain that its lopiniOI-IS were
correct. Sidley has never subsequently advised Gainor of a change in this position.
46. Asmore fully set foﬂ:hrabove, Andersen prepared and sigﬂed the tax returns

that claimed deductions for the losses created by the Sidley Plan, thereby explicitly
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demonstrating that Andersen’s position was that the claimed losses were _legitimately .'
deductible. Accordingly, Anders'.en wasl also éontacted by Gainor’s new representatives.
Andersen never advised Gaiﬁor of a change 1n its position that the losses | were
legitimately deductib_le.. |

47._ Klopfenstéin was involved in the same I'RSl dealings as Gainor.
’I'hroﬁghout, he maintained the position that the. claimed deductions were legitimate.
Klopfenstein has never advised Gainor .of la change in his position that the losses were
legitimately deductible. |

48.  Similarly, Merrill Lynch has never advised Gainor of a bh'ange in its
position that the losses creatéd by the Sidley Plan were legitimately dedﬁctible.

49, Although he incurred substantial legal fees and costs in an effort to find a
way to determine anf legitimacy to the tax deductioﬁs, Gainor could not do éo. |
Accordingly, on Janﬁary 20, 2006, upon the recommendation and advice of tax counsel,
G.ainor.ﬁled Form 13750, Election to Participate in Annéuncement‘ 2005-80 Sett_iement
Initiative. Pursuant to this settlement with the IRS, Gainor éccepted disallowance of the
claimed tax benefits associated with the strategy, in a manner consistent with releVaﬁt.
‘published guidance and the facts and circumstances surrounding the transactions, and the
“IRS agreed not to pursue any penalties against Gainor for his participation in the scheme.
As a result, $68,350,964 of capital losses which ilad been clajrﬁcd based on the Sidley
Plan transactions, were disallowed, causing Plaintiff Gainor to‘ha-ve to pay a'dditional |
taxes and interest in an amount in excess of seventeen millioh dollars ($17,000,000).

50.  All conditions precedent to the maintenance of this action have occurred.

10
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.~ COUNTH
- (Conspiracy Against Al Defendants)

51.  Plaintiffs feallege paragraphé 1 through 50 as though fully set forth herein.

| 52. Unbeknownét to Gainor, begiﬁning in or about January of 1996, Sidley had
begur; implementing a plan to develop, organize, and sell unregistered abusive tax
shelters under the guise of legitimate, complex investment strategies.

53.. ~.Beginning in 701' about ianuary of 1996 and mnﬁnuing until at léast' October
15, 2003,7 Sidley was organizing and promoting unregistered, abusive tax shelters,

- including, but not limited to, transactions described by the IRS and identified as “Tisted

transactioné” in Notice 99-59 (Boss), Notice 200044 (Son-of-Boss, BLIPS, COBRA),
Notice 2001-16 (MIDCO), Notice 2001-45 (basis.-shiftiné shelter, FLIPS/OPIS), and
Notice 2002-21 (CARDS), as well as certain other transacﬁoné'identiﬁed as Spread
Options, Common Trust Fund, and Option Transfer. These shelters were organized, sold,
and implemented in conjunction with various aécounting ﬁrms and investment ad.visors'.

54. These abusive tax shelters created the appearance of substantial capital
losses via a series of transactions specifically designed to offset la'rgercapital gains,

- usually incurred as a result of the taxpayer’s liquidation or sale of an investment position

or business.

_ 535.  Unbeknownst and undisclosed to Gainor, at some point in time prior to
January of 1999, Sidley and Andersen agreed to work together to develdp, organize and
promote certain abusivc tax sheiters, including but not lfmited to the investment strategy
recommended to Gainor. Andersen’s role included identifying and targeting prospective

customers.

11
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56. Under this arrangement, Sidley authorized and encouraged Andcrscn to.
ﬁromisé to the prospective customers that Andersen would arrange for the custoiners to
receive favorable “independe_nt” legal opinions from Sidlgy that it was “more—likely—than—
not” that the tax lossés claimed from the fransactions would be upheld as légitin'iaté tax
'd’eductions if éhallengéd by the IRS. Andersen’s ability to promise deliverf of these
opinion letters from Sidley was a significant element in the promotion efforts. In fact,
Andersen expressly conditioned its 6wn entitlement fo professional fees upon _the '
delivery of these “more-likely-than-not” opinion letters from independent counsel. |

57. . As more fully set forth above, as | a result of its position as Gainor’s
accountant, Andersen, thrquéh Defendant Michael Marx, learned rof the planned sale of
Gainor’s medical services business and the substantial profit Gainor would realize ﬁ'orﬁ
the sale. | |

58. Before the closing on the sale of the bﬁsiﬁess, Andersen, acting through
Defendant Marx, informed Plaintiff Gainor that it might be able to recommend a_éertain
strategy to help reduce his tot.al.tax liabiiity on the planned sale.

59. As more fully set forth ébove, in or aboui December of 1998, Plaintiff,
'Gairior sold his bu§iness in a transaction that generated a total gain in excess of one
hundred and thirty million dollars ($130,000,000). |

60. Unbeknownst to Gainor, at this time Andersen was an established client of
Sidley’s.

| 61. On one or more occasions between January and August of 1999, the exact
date or dates of which are not known by ll"laintiffs but are well known by Defendants, . |

Andersen, through Marx and Nissley, communicated with Defendant Ruble, then a tax

12




. Case 1:06-cv-21748-JEM  Document 114-2  Entered on FLSD Docket 07/26/2007 Page'14 of 43
- Case 1:06-cv-21748-JEM  Document 37-2  Entered on FLSD Docket 03/02/2007 Page 13 of 42

partner at Sidley’s predecessor firm quwn & Wood, and perhaps other Sidley
representativ;és, about structuring a transaction tb create tax losses for Gainor to offset his
. gain on the sale of his business.
62. In July of 1999, Sidley opened a new file fof Andersen, with Ruble as the .
* partner in charge, for “structuring tax advantage trénsactions.”
63. On August 5, 1999, Ruble, then a partner in Defendant Sidley, provided
Marx and Niséley with a redacted sample opinion letter that he had prepared for another
transaction, knoﬁving and intending that Andersen would rely on it and use it to structure
and sell a tax shelter proposal td Gainor. |
64. The strategy proposed by Ruble (hereinafter “Sidley Plan™) required
involvement of two additional entities in addi*tién to Andersen and-Sidley: (a) a financial
services firm to loan, hold and tfansfer money, and importantly, to provide ;co Gainor the
financial advice that would éewe as a predicate for claiming that the planned transactions
had a legitimate busin_ess purpoée, a prerequisité for the transactions to héve the
“économic substance’ necessary for thé losses arising theréﬁ'bm to be tax deductible; and
(b) an entity to act as purchaser of the assets that W(')uld'b.e transferred as part of the
strategy. |
65. On one .or more occasions between March andrAugust of 1999, the exact
date or dates of which are not known by Plaintiffs but are well known by Defendants,
Andersen, through Marx énd' Nissley, _oontacted Defendant Merriﬁ Lynch about
providing the financial services needed to implement the Sidley Plan. .Merrill Lynch

agreed to fill the financial services role on the Sidley Plan team.

13
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- 66.  On one or more occaéions between March and August of 1999, the exact -
date or dates of which are‘not known-by Plé:intiffs but are well known by Defendants,
Andersen, through Marx and Nissley, contacted Defendant Mark Klqpfenstein about
filling the purchaser role on the Sidléy Plan‘ team. Klopfenstein, a foﬁner' emplc;yee of
Defendant Andersen; agreed to join the conspiracy and purchzise the assets that -woﬁld be
transferred as part of the Sidley Plan. | |

67. In August of 1999, Andefsen, with Sidley’s express or implicit authority,
offered to Gainor a “strategy” designed by Sidley (the Sidle;y Planj to eﬂ'ectuate_ a tax

._ savings of approximately-seventeen million dollars ($17,000,000) related to the asset
'saJe. Andersen, through Marx, explained to Gainor that this Vtax éhelter would be
supported by an opinion,lettef from Sidley, on which Gainor couldrrely,' stating that the
losses and deductions to be claimed ﬁ"om implcnientatién of the Sidley Plan (which
would create the. tax savings) would likely be upheld if challenged by the Intemal
Revenue Service (the “IRS™). Andersen also advised Gainor that it had also mét with
Merrill. Lyﬁch personnel at a recent conference .in Phoenix and that Merrill Lynch would
assist in effectuating the program.

68. On Aﬁgust 20, 1999, Andersen, th;ough Marx or Nissley, seht to Gainor
via facsimile, a schedule confirming the anﬁ.cipated prdféssional‘ fees and transaction
costs that would be ir_lcurred in implementing the strategy. The schedule reflected that
fees would be héve to be paid to Andersen, Merrill Lynch, Brown & Wood/Sidley, and

two entities controlled by Klopfenstein, in the total sum of two million, one hundred

thousand dollars ($2,100,000).

14
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69. On or about September 1, 19_99, Gatnor authorized Andersen to proceed
with implementation of the strategy by the Ijafendants.

70. The sirategy required a series of complex financial trénsactiqns among
several different corporate entities. In furtherance of the conspiracy, ,Ande;sen
coordinated all these activities.

71.  One of the things that Memill Lynch was required to do as. part of the
Sidley Plan W.as to lend money to Gaindr,. and collateralize the‘ loan with treasury bills
purchased with lthe loan proceeds. The Sidley Plan required that these actions appe;ar to
be for a legitimate business purpose. On September 23, 1999, Defendant_ Merrill Lynch, |
through its vice president Jeffrey Ilunter, sent Plaintiff Gainor a letter extolling the
virtues of treasury bills as an investment vehicle and recommending that he_ purchase
them and pledge them as coIlatéral for the loan. Merrill Lynch then madé the plannéd |
loah'to Gainor, purchased treasury bills in Gainor’s name with the loan proceeds, and
held the treasury bills as collateral for the loan. .

| 72.  Similarly, in November of 1999, Klopfenstein, who was slated to buy
" companies that had no business activities and no a;isets except negotiable sgcurities,
purported to do “due diligence” on the companies he waé to purchase.

73.  On November 23, 1999, Klopfenstein executed two letters of intent on
behalf of unnamed entities to purchase all of the outstanding capital .stock of Bryan
Medical and LSI for a price “subject to the negotiation of the parties.”

74.  In the meantime, Andersen and Merrill Lynch, i)roceeded to coordinate and

oversee the execution of a series of complex and costly financial transactions necessary
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to implementation of the Sidley Plan that were designed to genérate ovér seventy million -
dollars t$70,000,000) in api)arent caﬁital losses. |

75.  On December 10, 1999, before all the transactions necessary to implement
the-Sidley Plan had been accomplished, the I.RS'released Notice 99-59, “Tax Avc')idance
Using Dishibutions of Encumbered Property.” Notice 99-59 described certain abusive
arrangements which were _virtual]y indistinguishable from the Sidley Plan, and warned
that such transactions generafe artificial losses lacking economic substanc.e énd do not
create the type of bona fide losses that are deductible under the Internél Revenue Code.

-76., ‘That same day, Marx and Nissley of Andersen discussed rthe impact of
Notice 99-59 with Ruble df Sidley. Ruble advised that- Sidleyl would ‘still issue the
favorable opinion letters for the Gainor transactions nétwithstanding Notice 99-59. Ruble
admitted to Andersen that Notice 99-59 could impair Gainér’s ability to say that he reﬁed '
in good faith on the advice of a tax professional. Neither Andetsen nor Sidley nor any.of.
their representatives ever advised Plaintiff Gainor of this. |

77.  Instead, although aware that the IRS had condemned the strategy as an
- abusive tax sheltér whose artiﬁciai ldsses would not be tax deductible, Defendants
proceeded to go forﬁard and cause all the planned transactions to be accomplished. On
. Decémber 14, 1999, phase one of the Sidley Plan was implementéd, generating a
purported forty million dollar ($40,000,000) capital loss. - Likewise, on December 23,
1999, phase two was implemented, generating an additional thirty million, six hundred
thousand dollars ($30,600,000) in purported capital losses. |
-78.. After the trénsactions were ﬁnalized, 6n December 31, 1999, as 'promisgd,

Sidley delivered to Gainor two tax opinion letters signed by Ruble. These letters (each
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over 50 pa'ges. in length) state that the deducﬁons claimed for the capital losses generated -
by implementation of the strategy would “more likely than not” be upheld if challenged
by the IRS.

797. These opinion letters specifically represent that the subject transactions. and
consequent deductions claimed would “more likeiy than not” be upheld if challenged by
the IRS. Sidley, via both pre-transaction rep_resen_tatioﬁs through Andersen and the
finalized opi'r.li-on letters, represented to Gainor that there was a greater than ﬁﬂy percent
(50%) chance tﬁat these losses could legitimately be claimed as deductions and would be

| upheld if chalienged by the IR.S. The opinion letters fail to disclose that Notice 99;59.
undeﬁnined Gainor’s ability to say that he reiied in good faith upon the advice of a tax
professional. . |

80. At all times material, Andersen and Sidley knew or should haﬁe known that

| me'deductions.were not likeiy to be upheld if challenged by the IRS; this information was
withheld from Gainor. indeed, Ahdersen and Sidley knew or should have knoﬁ that
there was ﬁrMally no reasonable possibility that the deductioﬁs would be upheld if

 challenged; yet they told Gainor the exact opposite. |

81. More_ specifically, Sidley-knew, or through the exercise of reasonable-care .
and due diligence, should have kﬁown, that it was making oﬁe or more of the foll.owing
material misrepresentations or omissions in both its opinion letters of December 31, 1999
and in its preliminary advice and directives;

a. mjsrej-presentations' as to the actual risk associated with entering

into the subject transactions;
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85.  As more fuﬂy set forth above, the Defendants agreed with cach other to
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crafted a legat “tax strategy” which would _yield Gainor over seventeen million dollars
($17,000,000) in tax savings.
| 86, The purpose of this conspiracy was to cause Plaintiffs to pay Defendants '
over two million one hundred thousand dollars ($2,100 ,000) i in fees to 1mp1ement the
. Sidley Plan.-
87.  Defendants Andersen and Sidley initiated the consplracy at some point in
time between F ebruary and August of 1999, The exact date 1s not known by Plaintiffs but | o
is well known by Defendants,
88.  Defendant Merrill Lynch agreed to jOlI‘l the consplracy at some point in

time between June and August of 1999. The exact date 18 not known by Plaintiffs but is

well known by Defendants,
89. Defendant Klopfenstein agreed to _]0111 the conspiracy at some point in time
between June and August of 1999, The exact date 18 not known by Plamuffs but is well

known by Defendants

e e b e e e e

90. - At the time the Defendants agreed to combine together to induce Gainor to

an illegal tax evasion scheme.

91.  Defendant Andersen undertook numerous acts in furtherance of the
conspiracy, including: notifying the other Defendants of the opportumty to present the
Sidley Plan to Gainor, recommendmg the Sidley Plan to Gainor, falsely advising Plaintiff |
Gainor that the Sidley Plan was a leommate tax strategy, failing to disclose IRS Notice _

99-59 to Plaintiff Gainor, failing to advise Plaintiff Gainor of its prior dealings with
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Sidley and Ruble “and instead téﬂing Plaintiff Gainor that Sidiey would act as .
f‘indepeﬁden ” tax opinion counsel, misrepfésenting by understa@ﬁent the actual rsk |
associated with entering into the lSidIey Plan, and preparing the tax refurns that claimed
deductions for the losses attributed to the Sidl_ey Plan transactions. -

92. Defendant Sidley undertook numerous acts in ﬁlrthgrance ' of the
conspiracy, including: on dates not presently known to Plaintiffs but wg:ll- k:nbwn to
Defendants between March of 1999 and August of 1999, Sidley had communications
with Andersen regarding the substance of the transaction explaining how the transactions

__ had to be structured; sending Andersen a sample opinion letter on August 5, 1999;
participating in developing ar fee stricture for the transaction that was présented to Gainor
by Andersen on August 20, 1999; on dates not presently known to Plaintiffs but wcll‘
known to Defendants between August of 1999 and October of 1999, having discussions |
with Andersen reéarding the substance of the transaction; discussing Klopfenstein with
Nissley on September 2, 1999; participating in developing a fee structure for the
transaction that was presented to Gainor by Andersen on Oétober 5, 1999; discussing the

- impact of IRS Notice 99-59 with Andersen on December 10, 1999; failirig to disclose
IRS Notice 99-59 to Plaintiffs; and preparing and signing the two opinidn letters on

o Decémber 31, 1999, . |

93. Defendaﬂt Merrill took numerous acts in furtherance of the Consp_iracy,

~including: on dafes not presently known to Plaintiffs but well known Vto Defendaxité
between Marcrh of 1.999 and August of 1999, Merrill Lync':h.had co:ﬁmunications with
Andersen and Sidley regarding the substance of the transéction and how the transactions

would be structured; participating in developing a fee structure for the transaction that
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was presented to Gainor by Andersen on August 20, 1999; setting up accounté to handle

the funds used in the transactions; writing a letter to Gainor recommending the

implementation of certain sécuriti_es transactions in order to carry out the Sidley Plan; and
. then implementing those transactions,

94, Defendant Klopfenstein took numerous acts in furtherance of the
conspiracy, including parﬁcipaﬁﬁg in the development of the fee structure, conducting
due dih'genceron Bryan Medical and LSI, writing letters of intent to purchase'Br}rah
Medical and LSI, purchasing Bryan Medical and LSI, paying off the Merrill Lynch loans,
and parﬁcipaﬁng in the filing of the 1999 tax returns that reported the Sidley Plan
transactions., | o

- 95. . In the course of the consPix;acy,. Defendants '.'made the following
misr'e;presentations of material féct to Plaintiff Gginor: | |

“a. In late February of 1999, Andgrsen’, through Marx and Niésley;'
advised Gainor that it had a legitimate tax stratgy which, if
employed, would aliow Gainor to légally claim capital losses that
would substantially reduce the taxes payable from the sale of hirs o
business. This was uﬁtru_e. ' 7

b. | On August 20, 1999, Andersen, through Marx and/or Nfésley,
communicated to Gainor that it had a legitimate tax strategy which,
if emﬁloyed, would allow Gainor to legally cla:irﬁ capitai losses

_that would reduce the taxes payable from the sale of his business
substantially, :and would cost Géinot less than 16% of the tax

saving to employ. This was untrue.
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c. On October 5, 1999, Andersen, through Marx and/or Nissley, -
communicated to Gaindr thatithad a legitimaté tax strategy which, |
if employed, would allow Gainor, to legally claim capital ios'ses’

- that would reduce the taxes payable from the sale of his b;.lsiness
by over $17,000,000. This wés untroe.
| d. In late February of 1999, and several times thereafter, Andefsen,
through. Marx and/or Nissley, -misrepresented the nature of the
transaction.. It was said to be a safe, legal tax saving strategy.
It;stead; it was an abusive tax shelter.. |

e.  Inlate February of 1999, and several timeé thereafter, Andersen,
through Marx én’d/or Nissley, misrep'resented- the risk of entering-
tﬁe transaction. . It was said to be a éafe, legal tax saving'strategy.
Instead, it was an abusive tax shelter destined to.resul't in 'j)aying_

7 the highest taxes possible plus penalties and interest. 7

f In late Febniary of 1999, and severai times théreafter, Andersen,
through Marx and/or Nissley, misrepresented théf the subject
transactions and consequent deductions claimed would more likely

. than not be upheld if challenged by thé Internal Revenue Service.

In its December 31, 1999 opinion letters, and several times

g

previously through its agent and co-conspirator Andersen, Sidley,
~ through its partner Ruble, misrepresented the nature of the
tra_hsaction. It was said to be a safe, legal tax saving strategy.

Instead, it was an abusive tax shelter.
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h. 11_1 its December 31, 1999 opinion letters, and sevéral times
previously through its agent and co-conspirator Andersen, Sidley,
thfough its partner Ruble, misrepresented the risk of entering the
transaction. It was said to be a safe, legal tax saving strategy.
Instead, it was an abusive tax shelter destined to result in paying
the highest taxes possible plus penalties and interest. |

i In its December 31, 1999 opiﬁioh lettgrs, Sidley, through its
partner Ruble, misrepresented that the éubject transactions and
consequeht deductions claimed would more likely than not be
upheld if challenged by ﬁle Internal Revenue Service.

J- On September 24, 1999 Me’rﬁll Lynch, through its vice president
Jeffrey Hﬁnter, advised Gainor that it was a soﬁnd business

_ decision to invest in treasury bills, borrow the purch_ase.price from..
Merrill Lynch, and use thertreasury bills as collateral for the loan.
This was false. |

k. On September 24, 1999 Merrill Lynch, through its vice president
Jeffrey Hunter, advised Gaiﬁor that the. reason it was
recommending that he buy treasury bilis and pledge them a-srloan
collateral was because this was la sound.business decision. This

was false.- | |

1. On September 24, 1999 Merrill Lynch, through its vice president
Jeffrey Hﬁntef, wrote Gainor a 'létter stating numerous bases for

Hunter’s recommendation that” Gainor invest in treasury bills,
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borrow the purchase price from Merrill Lynch, aﬁd use the'f:reasury
bills as collateral for the loan. This was all false.

m. In its Decgmber 31, 1999 opinion letters, Sidley said that the

_ investx_nents were made for substantial non-tax:busir;es-s reasons.
This was false.

n. Int its December 31, 1999 opinion letters, Sidley misrepr_eseﬁted the
reasons for the purchase of T-bills on margin.

0. Andersen and Sidley both failed to disclose to Gzﬁnor the fact that
IRS Notice 99-59 effectively declared the Sidley Plan to be an
abus_ix;e' tax shelter meaning that 'claiming- dedﬁctions would be
ineffective and potentially the basis for penalties;

p- Andersen and Sidley both failed to disclose Sidley’s concerns that _

| Mr.. Gainor’s ability to rely in good faith upon the advice of a tax
rprofessional was impaired by Notice 99-59. |

q. Andersen and Sidley both failed to disclos¢ Sidley’s actual role as
an organizer, profnoter and seller of these unrégistered, potentially .
abusive tax shelters, Sldlcy $ pnor relationship with Andersen and
other large accounting firms in this regard, and related conﬂlcts of
mterest which precluded the rendition of -objective and
“independent” tax opinions; |

L. Andersen misrepresented the éctual‘ﬁik associlated with entering

into the subject transactions; -

24




Case 1:06-cv-21748-JEM  Document 114-2  Entered on FLSD Docket 07/26/2007 Page 26 of 43
Case 1:06-cv-21748-JEM  Document 37-2 Entered on FLSD Docket 03/02/2007 Page 25 of 42-

S. Andersen and Sidley both failed lto disclose the ﬁctual risk.
associated with enfering into the subject transactions after the
issuance of IRS Notice 99-59.

96, ‘The conspiracy succeeded. In reliance on the representations of -
Defendants, Plaintiff Gainor impiementéd the Sidley Plan and paid Defendants over two
million one hundred thousand doliars ($2,100,000) in fees to do so.

97.  As a result of the conspiracy, Plaintiff Gainor Was damaged in that he was
required to j)ay $2,100,000 in fees to Defendants, a&ditionai taxes and Interest in an
amount exceeding seventeen million dollars ($17,000,000), and substantial ‘additional
amounts in professional fees and costs incurrea in negotiations with the Internal Revenue
Service. In addition, Plaintiffs lost the opportunity to engage m efféqtive tax planning.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, Mark J. Gainor and Elyse Gainor, respectfully request
thaf this Court award compensatory damages, punitive damages, attorneys’ fees-and costé;
against Defendants, jointly and severally, and further award Plaintiffs such other relief as
tﬁis Court deems just and proper in the premises.

COUNT II :
(Professional Malpractice - Sidley)

98.  Plaintiffs reallege paragraphs 1 through 50 as though ﬁﬁly set fo-rth herein.
99. In August of 1999, Defendant Sidley, acting through its agent Andersen,
agreed to provide Plaintiff Gainorl with a legai opinion on the subject transacﬁons in‘
- exchange for a fee of $400,000. | | |
100. As a result Sidley‘ha& a dﬁty to exercise reasonable cére, skill, and the
diligence ordinarily possessed and exercised by attorneys spccializing in the field of tax

planning, under similar circumstances.
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101. Sidley breached this dﬁty and deviated ﬁ'omxthre ac.ceptable standard of care
fora tai specialist in numerous respects. _ ‘ | ' : |

102, Inits December 31, 1999 opinion letters, Sidley specifically represents that
the Sidléy Plan transactiéﬁs created losses that could legitimately be claifned as tax
deductions, aﬁd it was “more likely Vthan not” they would be upheld if challenged Ey the
IRS. |

103. At all times material, Sidﬂley. knew, or in the eXerciQe of reasonable care
should have known, that the deductions were not likely to be upheld ;f challenged by the
IRS. Indeed, Sidley knew or should have known that there was virtually no reasonable
possibility that the deductioﬁs would be upheld if challenged; vet it to_ld. Gainor the exact
oppdsite. o |

104. Andersen and Sidley both failed to disclose to Gainor the fact that IRS

Notice 99-59 effectchly declared the Sidley Plan to be an abusive tax shelter meaning
that claiming deductions would be ineffective and potentially the basis for penalties;

105. Moreover, Sidley did not accurately or ad_eqﬁately inform Gainor of the
actual risk associated with entering into fhe subject transactions.

106. In-addition, Sidley failed to disclose that the subject transactions should
have been registered as “potentially abusive tax.shelters” under 26 U.S.C. § 6111(c).

107. Further, Sidley should have, but did not, disclose Sidley’s actual role as an

organizer, promoter and seller of these unregistered, potentially abusive tax shelters, its '
: rélationship with Andersen and other large accounting firms, and related conflicts of

interest which precluded the rendition of objeciive and “independent™ tax opinions.
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108.. Moreover, Sidley failed to disclose its concerns that Gainor’s abi]ity to rely
in good faith upon the advice of a tax professional was impaired by Notice 99-59.

109. As a result of Sidley’s breaches and deviations, Gainor entered into the '
Sidley Plan transactions and has suffered damages including, but not Iirﬁite,d to, two
million one hundred thousand dollars ($2,100,000) in fees and transaction costs paid to
Defgndants in connection with the Sidley Plan; additional fees and costs incurred in
connection with participation in the IRS Voluntary bisclosure Plan_ and related IRS
dealings; paymént of over seventeen million dollars ($1;7,000,000) in additional taxes and
interest; and lost opportunities for proper tax planning.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, Mark J. Gajnof and Elyse Gainor, respectfully request
thét this Court award compensatory damages and costs, againSf Sidley and such further
relief as this Court deems just and proper in the premises. |

COUNT II1
{Breach of Contract - Sidley)

110. Plaintiffs reallege paragraphs 1 through 50 as though fully set forth herein.
| Iil. At all times material, Andersen had actual or apparent au_thority to act on
 behalf of Sidley in connection with the implementation of the Sidley Plan.

112. In August of 1999, Géinor entered into an oral agreement with Sidley,
actiﬁg'through its agent, Andersen. The express terms were that Sidley, working through
Andersen, would advise Gainor .on how to structure a complex set of businéss
transactions that .Would provide over seventeen million. dollars (17,000,000) of tax
savings .related to the sale of Ga.inor’s business. Sidley further agreed to proﬁde
“mdependent,” legal opinion letters conﬁnning the propriéty of these transactions and

opining that the consequent deductions taken would more likely than not be upheld if
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challenged by the IRS. In consideration thereof, Gainor agreed to .pay VSidley four -
hundred thousand dollars ($400,000).
113. In additiqn, there were imp]ied terms of the agreement, including that
Sidiey would exercisé reasonable care and diligence in its wofk, that.it would c;)mpoﬂ
with all of its ethical responsibilities, and that it would use thﬁt level of skill. and care
appliéable to lawyers _holding themselves out as tax planning specialists. _A_dditionally
there was implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.
114. Gainor fully performed his duties under the contract. He implemented the
Sidley Plan. |
115. Although Sidléy- delivered the legal opinion letters, it failed to perform its
obligations under the contract. |
116. Sidley bréached the contract by failing to prﬁvide a plan. that provided oﬁr
seventeen million dollars (17,000,0@0) of tax savings. |
117. Further,. Sidley breached both of the implied covenants set fqrth in
paragraph 112 above. Sidley breached these covenants _by_its conduct set forth above, |
- including, but not limited to, the acts and omissions more specifically set forth m
paragraphs 101-107 ﬁereof, the allegations of which are hereby incorporated herein.
| 118. As a result of Sidley’s breaches, Gaindr entered into i:he Sidley Plan
transactions, and has suffered damages including, but not limited to, two million one
hundred thousand dollars ($2,100,000) in fees and transaction costs paid tol Defendants in

connection with the Sidley Plan; additional fees and costs incurred in connection with

participation in the IRS Yolmtmy Disclosure Plan and related IRS dealingé; payment of
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over -seventeeh million dollars ($17,000,000) in additionél taxes aﬁd interest; and lost
opportunities for proper tax planning.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, Mark J. Gainor and Elyse Gainor, respectfully request
that this Court .ﬁward bompensatory damages and costs, against Sidley and such further.
- relief as this Court deems just and proper in the premises. |

‘ COUNT IV '
(Breach of Contract Implied in Fact - Sidley)

1 19. Plaintiffs reallege paragraphs 1 through 50 as though fully set forth herein.

120. An agreement between Sidley and Gaiﬁor‘ arose by ﬁnplication given the
facts and circumstances suﬁounding the parties’ conduct.

7 121. - Gainor conferred a benefit upon Sidley by paying four hundred thousand
* dollars ($400,000) to Sidley which was accepted as payment for legal services-. '
-~ 122. Under ordinarf circumstances, a reasonable la{i} firm holding itself out as
spgcializing in tax plaﬁning, would reasonably expeét to be 'requiféd to render substantial,
- competent legal services for such a benefit.

123. Sidley breached the implied contract with Gainor in failing to render
competent legal services by, among other things: (1) failing to exércise such reasonable E
care, skill, and diligenc_e as’is ordinaﬁ]y exercised by attorneys, specializing in the field of |
tax planning, under similar circumstances; (2) fdlﬁe to disclose that the subject
transactions should have been registered as “pétentially abusive tax shélters” under 26
U.S.C. § 6111(c) and that investor lists nf_:e&ed té be maintained under 26 U.S.C. § 6112;
(3) fai]iﬁg to disclose Sidley’s aét;lal role as an organizer, promotef and seller. of the.s.e
and other unreéistered, potentially abusive tax shelters, its relationship with Andersen,

and related conflicts of interest which precluded the rendering of objective and
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“independent” tax opinions; (4) failing to disclose to Gainor Sidley’s concerns that-
Gainor’s ability to rely in good faith upon the advice of a tax professional was jmpaired
by Notice 99-59; and (5) making the material misstatements and omissions set forth in
paragr_aph 93 hereof. | |
124. As a result of Sidley’s failure to render compétént legal advicé, Gainor
entered into the subject transactions and has suffefed damages including, but not iimited
to, fwo million one hundred thousand dollérs ($2,100,000) in fees and transaction costs
paid to Defendants in connection with the Siciley Piah; additional feés and costs incurred
| in connection with participation in the IRS Voluntary Disclosure Plaﬁ and related IRS
dealings; payment of over se.venteen million dollars ($17,000,000) m additional taxes and
jnterest; and lost opportunities for proper tax planning. |
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, Ma_rk J. Gainor and Elyée Gaiﬁor, respectfully requ.est
that this Court award compensatory damages and coéts, against Sidley and such 'ﬁn‘ther
- relief as this Court deems just and proper in the premises. |

, COUNTV _
(Breach of Contract Implied in Law: Unjust Enrichment - Sidley)

125. Plainﬁffs reallege paragraphs 1 through 50 as though fully set forth herein. .
126. Gainof conferred a benefit upon-Sidley by paying fouf hundred thousénd
doliars ($400,000) to Sidley.
127. Sidley knowingly and voluntarily accepted and retained this benefit -
_ cpnferréd upon it as compensation for providing competent legal services that were never

rendered.
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128. Under these circumstances, Sidley would be unjustly énriched if permitted
to retain'this benefit without having rendered coinpetent legal services, unless Sidley is
required to disgorge these professional fees, together with interest, back to Gainor.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, Mark J. Gainor and Elyse Gainor, respectfully request
that this Court award compeﬁsétory dalﬁages and costs, against Sidley and such further
relief as this Court (ieems just and- proper in the premi_ses.

COUNT VI
(Negligent Misrepresentation - Sidley)

129. Plaintiffs reallege paragraphs 1 through 50 as though ﬁ;lly set forth her¢in.

130. Sidley held itself out as a tax specialist Withr a superior knowledge of tﬁe
subjéct matter, and it was a s_tahdard practice for Sidley to issue tax opinion letters in the
ordinary course of its business. |

- 131, Sidley auihorized and encouraged Andersen to utilize SidIcy’é name and

reputation as well as the promise of favorable “more likely-* than not,” Sidley opinibn
letters, in order to induce Plaintiff Gainor to implement the Sidley Plan and pay Sidley
four hundred thousand dollars ($400,000) in fees. 7 |

132. As more fully set forth above iﬂ paragraphs 80 and 94 hereof, the
allegations of v;rhich are hereby iﬁoorporatéd herein, Sidley made numerous false
statements or omissions of material fact to Gainor in its opinion letters and in connection
with the Sidley Plan. _

133. At the time thef were mad_el, Sid]ey éhpuld have known that these
represenfations of material fact were false and that these omissions of fact were material.

134, Sidley i'ntended that its misrepresentations an‘dr omissions of material fact

induce Gainor to act in reliance thereon.
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135. @Gainor justifiably relied on Sidley’s misrepreseniations and omissions 0f _
materiai fact by entering into the subject transactions and paying éubstantial fees and
transaction costs.

136. Asa res;ult of Sidley’s negligent misrepresentations and _omissidns, 'Gainor
has suffered damages ‘including, but not limited to, over two million one hundred
thousé.nd dollars ($2,100,000) in professional fees and transaction costs incurrea in -
connection with the Sidlcy Plan, additional fees and costs incurred in ,connectiﬁn with
participation in the IRS Voluntary D_i'sclosure Plan and related IRS ciealings, payment of
over seventeen million dollars ($17,000,000) in additional taxes, and losf opportunities
for proper tax planning, - |

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, Mark J. Gainor and Elyse Gainor; respectfully request
that this. Court award éompensatory damages and costs, against Sidley and sﬁch further
relief as this Couft deems jusf and proper in the prenlises. | o

COUNT Vii
. (Fraudulent Misrepresentation - Sidley)

137. Plaintiffs reallege paragraphs 1 through 50 as though fully set forth herejn.

138. Sidléy held itself out as a tax specialist wifh a superior kﬂowledge of the
subject matter, and it was 5 standard practice for Sidley to issue tax opinion letters in the
ordinary course of its business.

139. Sidley authorized and encouraged Andersen to utilize the Sidley name a:_ld :
reputation as well as the promise of favéréble, “more likely than not,” Sidley opinion
letters, in order to induce Plaintiff Gainor to impliement. tﬁe Sidley Plan and pay Sidléy .

four hundred thousand dotlars ($400,000) in fees.
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140. As -more fully set forth above in paragraphs 80 .and 94 hereof, the -
allegations. _of ‘which are hereby incorporated herein, Sidley made nu:ﬁerous- faise
statements_ or omissions of material fact to Gainor in its opinion letters and in gonnection
with the Sidley Plan. | |

141.- At the time they were made, Sidley knew that these representationé of
material fact were false and that these omissions Qf fact were material |

142. Sidley intended that its misrepresentatioﬂs and omissions of material fact = -
induce Gainor tb act in reliance thereon. | |
| 143. Gainor justifiably relied on Sidley’s misrepresentations and omissions of |
material fact by entering into the subject transactions and paying substantial fees and
transaction costs. |

144. As a result of Sidléy’s fraudulent misrepresentations and omissions, Gainor
has sﬁffered damagés including but not limited to over two million one hundred thousanci
dollars (82,100,000} in professional fees and transaction costs incurred in coﬁnection
with the Sidley Pian, additional fees and costs incurred in connection with participation in
the IRS Voluntary Disclosure Plan and related IRS dealings, payment of éver seventeen

* million dollars ($17,000,000) in additional taxes, and ‘losrt opportunities-fdr proper tax
planning. | _ |

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, Mark J. Gainor and- Elyse Gatnor, respectfully request
that this Court award compeﬁsatory damages, punitive damages, attorneys" fees and costs
against Sidley and such further relief as this Court deems jﬁst and proper m the premises.

| ' COUNT VHI |
(Tortious Interference with an Advantageous Business Relationship by Sidley)

145.  Plaintiffs reallege paragraphs 1 through 50 as though fully set forth herein.
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146. Gainor had an established business relationship of trust and confidence
with Andersen. Gainor routinely relied on Andersen to provide accounting and consulting
services and to protect his financial interests while maintaining the co_nﬁdentiality of
sensitive financial inférmation. | |

147 Sldley had knowledge that Andersen maintained these types of
relat1onsh1ps with clients such as Gainor and had access to such clients’ conﬁdentlal
financial information. Sidley knew that Andersen’s,emstlng relanonshlps with clients
such as Gainor could be utilized to promote unregistered, abusive tai shelters'being sold
and marketed by Sidley for profit. |

| 148. Sidley intentionally and | unjustifiably intcrféred * with Gainor’s
a(ivantagequs business, confidential and fiduciary relationship with Andersen by inducing
Andersen to promote th.e Sidley Plan to Andersen’s clients, including Gainor.

149. As .a result of Sidley’s interference, Gainor entered into the subject
transactions and has suffered damages including but_not.limited to over two rnillién one
hundred thousand dollars ($2,100,000) in professional fees and transaction costs incurred |
in connection with the Sidley Plan, additional fees and costs incurred in -cénnéction with

'participation in the fRS Voluntary Disclosure Plan anti related IRS dealings, payment of
over seventeen million dollars ($17,000,000) in ‘additidnal taxes, and lost opportunities '
for proper tax plam;ling- | |

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, Mark J. Gainor and Elyse Gainor, res pectfully request

that this Court award compensatory damages and costs, against SldIey and such further

relief as this Court deems just and proper in the premlses
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COUNT IX
(Professional Malpractice - Andersen)

. 150. Plaintiffs reallege 'paragraphé 1 through 50 as though fully set forth herein.

-' 151. Priorto 1.999, Gainor had an established business relationship of trust and
conﬁdence with Andersen. Gainor routinely relied on Andersen to pfovide accounting_
and cénsﬁiting services and to protect his ﬁnancial interests while maintaining the
confidentiality of sensitive financial information, | _

152. As more fully set forth above, in 1999 Andersen agreed to provide Plaintiff
Gainor with a “tax strategy” that would save Gaiﬁor seventeen million dollars .
($17,000,000) in faxes in eﬁchange fora fee.of $583',000.
| _ 153. As a result Andersen had a duty to exercise reasonable care, skill, and the
diligence ordinarily possessed and exercised by accountants specializing in the field of
tax planning, under simiiar circumstances.
154. Andersen breached this duty é,nd. deviated ﬁ'OIﬁ the acceptable standard of
care fo.r a tax specialist in numerous respects. |
155. On numerous occasions in 1999, including late F_ebruafy, Augﬁst 20 and
October 5, Andersen, through Marx and Nissley, informed Plaintiff Gainor that the
Sidiey Plan was. a legitimate tax strategy which, if employed, Would allow Gainor to
legally claim capital losses that would substantially reduce the taxes payable from the
~ sale of his business. This was not. the case, and Anderseq knew it, or by exercise of the
reasonable care, ékill, and diligence ordinarily ﬁossessed .and exercised by accountants
' specializing in the field of tax pléﬁning under similar circumstaﬁces, should have knoh .

it.
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156. On October 5, | 1999, Andersen, through Marx and/or Nissley, |
eommunlcated to Gainor that 1mp1ementat10n of the Sidley P]an would allow Gainor to
legally claim capltal losses that would reduce the taxes payable from the sale of his
business by over $17 000,000. This was not the case, and Andersen knew 1t' or by
exerc1se of the reasonable care, skill, and diligence ordinarily possessed and exerc1sed by
acoountants epec1ahz1ng in the field of tax planning under 31m11ar 01rcumstances should
have known it.

157. In late February of 1999, and several times thereafter, Andersen, th_rough
Marx and/or Nissley, misrepresented the nature of the Sidley Plan. It wue said to be a
safe, legal tax saving stra_tegy.r Instead, it was an abusive tax shelter. |

“158. In'late February of 1999, and several times thereafter Andersen, through
Marx and/or Nissley, nusrepresented the risk of -1mplementmg the Sidley Plan. It was
said to be a safe, legal tax _sauing strategy. Instead, it was an abusive tax shelter destined
to result in paying the highest taxes possible plus penalties and interest. |

-159.  In late February of 1999, and several times thereafter, Andemen, through o
Marx and/or Nissley, misrepresented' that the subject, transactions eud consequent
deductlons claimed would more likely than not be upheid 1f challenged by the Internal
Revenue Servwe

160. At all times material, Andersen knew, or in the exercise of reasonable care
should have known, that the deductions were not likely to be upheld tf challenged by the |
IRS. Indeed, Andersen knew or should have known that there .wasu virtually no

reasonable possibility that the deductions would be upheld if challenged; yet it told

Gainor the exact opposite.
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161, Further, Andersen failed to disclose to Gainor that Notice 99-59 would
impair Gajn(_)i"_s ability to say that he relied ‘in good - faith upon the advice of a tax
' profeésional.
162. Further, Andersen should have, but did not, disclose Sidley’s role as an
- organizer, promoter and seller of these unregisteréd, potentially abusive tax shelters and
Sidley’s relationship with Anderéen and other large accounting firms, which precluded
Sidiey from th.e rendering objective and “ind.ependent” tax opinipns.
163. Aé a result of Andersen’s breaches and ﬁeviations, Gainor entered info the
Sidley Plan transactions and has suffered damages inc_:luding, but not limited to, two
million one hundred thousand dollars ($2,100.,00-O) in fees and transaction costs paid to
Defendants in connection with the Sidley Plan; additional fees and costs incurred in
connection with participation iﬁ the IRS Voluﬁtary Disclosure Plan and related IRS
dealiﬁgs; payment of more than seventeen miliion dollars ($17,000,000) in add_itional
taxes and interest; and lost opportunities for prop.ér tax planning.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, Mark J. Gainor and Elyse Gainor, respectfully request
“that this Court award compensatory damages and costs, against Andersen, and such
rfurther relief as this Court deems juét and proper in the premises.

COUNT X
(Breach of Contract - Andersen)

164. Plaintiffs reallege paragraphs 1 thréugh 50 as though fully set forth herein.

165. Ozi Septe_mber 1, 1999, Gainor entered into a written agreement with
Anderseﬁ. The express terms were that Andersen, would advisé Gainor <-m how ‘to
structuré a compléx set of business transactibns that would érovide over seventeeﬂ '

million dollars (17,000,000) of tax savings related to the sale of Gainor’s business.
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Andersen further agreed to obtain “independcnt,;’ legal opinion letters ﬁ'om Sidley -
confirming the propriety of these transactions and opining that the qoﬁsequent deductions
taken would more likely than not be upheld if challenged by the IRS Indeed, Andersen
promised to take no fee whatsoever if it did not supply these opinion letters ﬁ‘oml Sidley
In exchange, Gainor agreed io péy Sidley fees estimated at five hundred eighty-three-
thousand dollars ($583,000.). |

166. In addition, there were imﬁiied terms of the agreémcnt, including that
Andersen would exercise reasonable care and diligen'ce in its work, tﬁat it §vou]d comport
with all of its ethical responsibilities, and that it would use that level of ‘skilll and cdre
applicable to accountants holding themselves out as tax .planiling_ specialists.
Additionally there was implied covenant of -good faith and fair dealing. |

167. Gainor fuily performed his duties under the éontract. He implemented the
transactions Andersen specified, the Sidley Plan. |

168. Although Andersen delivered the Sidley legal opinion lettérs, it failed to
perform its obligations under the contract. |
| 169. Anderéen breached the contract by failing to provide a plaﬁ that provided,
over seventeen millibn_ dollars (17,000,000) of tax savings.

170. Andersen further breached both of the implied coveﬁaﬁts set forth in
paragraph 164 above. Andersen breached these covenants by itsl conduct set forth above,
including, but not limited to, the material misrepresentations and/or omissions -more
specifically set forth in paragraph 94 hereof, the allegations of ivhich are hereby
incorporated herein, and the matters séf fﬁrth in paragraphs 154-161 heréof, the

allegations of which are hereby incorporated herein.
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171. As a result of Andersen’s breaches, Gainor entered into the Sidley Plan
transactions, and has suff'ered damages incIuding, but not limited to, twolmillion on'e
~ hundred thousand dollars ($2,100,000) in fees and transaction costs paid to Defendants in
connection with the Sidley Plan;. additional fees and éosts incurred in connection with
participation in the IRS Voluntary Disclosure Plan and related IRS dealings; payment of
seventeen million dollars ($17,000,000) in additi-onal taxes and interest; aﬁd lost
opportunities for proper tax planning, |
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, Mark .J .VGainor and rEIyse Gainof, respectfully request
that this Court award compensatory damages and costs, against Ande:sen, and such
further relief as this Court deems just and propér in the premises.

COUNT XI '
(Negligent Misrepresentation - Andersen)

172. Plaintiffs reallege paragraphs 1 through 50 as though fully set forth herein.
173. Prior to- 1999, Gainor had an estéblished business 'felationship of trust and
confidence with Andersen. Gainor routinely relied on Andersen to provide accounting
and consulting services and to protect his financial interests while maintaining the
- confidentiality of sensitive financial information._ Andersen accepted this trust. As a
result, Andersen énd Gainor had a confidential relationship, and Andersen owed Gainor a -
fiduciary duty of good faith and fair dealing.. |
174. Andersen held itself out as a tax specialist with a superior knowledge of the
- subject matter, and it was a standard pra'cticé fof Andersen to provide tax advice in the

ordinary course of its business.
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175. Asmore fully set forth above, in 1999 Andersen agreed to prov1de Plaintiff
Gamor with a “tax strategy™ that would save Gainor seven{cen miltion dollars |
(817,000,000) in taxes in exchange for a fee of $583,000.

176. As more fully set forth above in paragraphs 94 and 154-161 here;of, .the
allegations of which are 'héreby incorporated herein, Andersen made nurﬁerous false
statelﬁents or omissions of material fact to Gainor in connection with the Sidley Plan. |

177. At the time they were made, Andersen should have known that these
representations of material fact were f'alse and that these omissions of fact were matenal

178. Andersen mten_ded that its misreprescntations and omissions of material
fact induce Gainor to act in relianoé thereon. |

179. Gainor justifiably relied on Andersen’s misrepresentations and omissions
of material fact by entéﬁng into the Sidley Plan traﬁsactiohs and paying substantial fées
and transaction costs. | | |

180. As a result of Andersen’s negligent mi'srepresentation‘s and omissions,
Gainor has suffered damages including, but not limited to, of/cr two million one hundred
thousand dollars ($2,100,000) in pfofessional feés and. transaction césts incutred in
connection with the Sidley Plan, additional fees and costs incurred in doﬁnection with |
participatibn in the IRS Volunfary Disclosure rPlan and related IRS deélings, payment of
more than seventeen million dollars ($17,000 000) in additional taxes, and lost
opportumtles for proper tax planning. |

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, Mark J. Gainor and Elyse Gainor, respectfully request
that this Court award compensatory damages and costs, against Andersen, and such

further relief as this Court deerms just and proper in the premises.
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- COUNT X1I
(Fraud by Andersen)

181. ' Plaintiffs reallege paragraphs 1 through 50 as though fully set forth herein.

182. Prior to 1999, Gainor had an es_tablished busiﬁess .réIation_ship of trust and
confidence with Andersen. Gainor routinely relied on Andersen to provide accounting
and consulting services and to protect his financial interests while maintaining the
confidentiality of sensitive financial information. Andersenr accepted this trust. As a
result, Andersen and Gainor had a conﬁdentiai relationship, and Andersen owed Gainor a

- fiduciary duty of good faith and fair dealing

183; Andersen held itself out as a tax spe-cialist. with a supgrior lm.owledge of the
subjéc_:t matter, and it was a standard practice for Anderseﬁ to provide tax advice in the
ordinary course of its business. .

- 184. As more fully set forth above, in 1999 Andersen agreed to provide Plaintiﬂ’
Gainor with a *“tax | strategy” that would save Gainor seventeen million - dollars
($17,000,000) in taxes in exchange for a fee of $383,000.

185. As more fully set forth above in paragraphs 94 and 154-161 hereof, the
Va]legation's of which' are hereby incorporated herein, _Andersen made numerous false
statements or omissions of material fact to Gainor in connection with the Sidley Plan.
186. At the time they were made, Andersen should knew that these
 representations of material fact were false and that these omissions of fact were material.
187. Andersen intended that its nﬁsrepresentatioﬁs and omjssions of maf;erial '

fact induce Gainor to act in reliance thereon.
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188. Gainor justifiably relied on Andersen’s misrépreéentations and omissions

of material fact by entering into the Sidley Plan transactions and paying substantial fees

and transaction costs.

¥

189. As a result of Andersen’s mateﬁ_al misrepresentations and omissions,
Gainor has suffe;ed damages including, but not limited to, over two million bné hundred
- thousand dollars ($2,100,000) in professional fécs and transaction costs_ incurred in
connection with the Sidley Plan, additionﬂ fees and- costs incurréd inconnectiﬁn with
participation m the IRS Voluntary Discloéure Plan and related IRS -(iealings, payment of
~over sevenfeén million dollars ($17,000,0QO) in additional taxes, and lost o'pportunities
for proper tax planning. | | | |
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, Mark J. Gainor and Elyse Gainor, respectfully requeét
that this Court award cémpensatory damages, punitive damages, attorneys’ fees and. costs
against Andersen, aﬁd such further relief as this Court deems just and proper in the

premises.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiffs, Mark J. Gainor and Elyse Gainor, demand a jury trial on all issnes éo

triable.

(\
ARDBENJAMIN WILKES -/
Florida Bar No. 267163 -
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Tampa, Florida- 33606 ,

Telephone:  (813) 254-6060

Facsimile; (813) 254-6088
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Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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